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PART I 

INTRODUCTION 

On March 2, 1995, the Indian Claims Commission (ICC) agreed to conduct 
an inquiry into the rejected claim of the Fishing Lake First Nation.' The claim 
concerns the surrender of 13,170 acres of land from Fishing Lake Indian 
Reserve (IR) 89 on August 9, 1907. The surrender was approved by Gover- 
nor in Council and the sale of the land was sanctioned on September 7, 
1907. 

The First Nation first submitted its claim to the Minister of Indian Affairs 
on April 23, 1989.2 It argued that the claim should be validated under the 
federal government's Specific Claims Policy as a breach of lawful obligation 
on the following grounds: 

I .  That the alleged surrender on August 9, 1907, was null and void having been 
obtained, 
a) through duress and undue iduence, 
b) as an unconscionable agreement, and 

2. That the alleged surrender on August 9, 1907 was null and void having been 
obtained without strict compliance with provisions of the [ndian Act. 

3. That the Crown breached its trust or  fiduciary obligations in obtaining the alleged 
surrender.' 

The claim was rejected on Febmay 12, 1993. In his Letter rejecting the 
claim, Jack Hughes, Research Manager for the Department of Indian Affairs 
and Northern Development (DIAND), stated that "the Federal position . . . is 

- 

1 Daniel B e U q r d e  and James Prenuce. Co-Chairs, Indian Claims Commiriion (ICC), to Chief and Council, Fish- 
mg Lnke First Nation, and lo the Ministers ofJuslice and Indian and Northern ~ z i r s ,  March 3. 1995 (ICC fde 
7l"721.11 -, .,. 

2 Fishing Lake Band, Band Council Reralurion, April 23, 1969 (ICC Documents, p. 521). 
3 Fishing Lake Band Land Claun: Legd Submissios, delivered by BaUaur Moss MiUiken Larchuk & Kyle, Barrlslen 

and Solicitors (ICC Documenti, p, jjlj. 
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that the claim fails to establish an outstanding lawful obligation to the Fishing 
Lake Indian Band as defined in the Specific Claims P~licy."~ 

In response to Canada's rejection of the claim, the First Nation submitted a 
supplemental submission on September 29, 1994.5 It updated each of the 
issues raised in the First Nation's original submission, and it addressed the 
new issue of "misrepresentation." The First Nation contended that "the 
Crown negligently misrepresented the circumstances surrounding the surren- 
der by failing to properly advise the First Nation members and as a result the 
First Nation agreed to the Alleged Surrender of 1907."%n January 31, 1995, 
the First Nation submitted a second supplemental submission, which raised 
another new issue. The First Nation argued that the consent required under 
Treaty 4 had not been obtained prior to the separation of the Fishing Lake, 
Nut Lake, and Kinistino Reserves and the surrender of 13,170 acres from 
Bshing Lake IR 89.7 Canada reviewed both of the First Nation's supplemental 
submissions, and on June 14, 1995, Mr Hughes advised the First Nation that 
"as a result of this review we are not prepared to alter our preliminary posi- 
tion that the evidence and submissions are insufficient to establish that a 
lawful obligation exists on the part of the Federal Crown ('Canada') with 
respect to the 1907 surrender of a portion of Fishing Lake Reserve No. 89 
(the 'Re~etve')."~ 

At about the same time as the First Nation began submitting its supplemen- 
tal arguments to the Minister of Indian Affairs, it also asked the Commission 
to review Canada's rejection of its claim? At the request of a First Nation, the 
Commission can conduct an inquiry into a rejected specific claim pursuant to 
the Inquiries Act. The Commission's mandate to conduct inquiries states, in 
pari: 

that our Commissioners on the basis of Canada's Specific Claims Policy. . . by consid- 
ering only those maners at issue when the dispute was initially submitted to the Com- 
mission, inquire into and report on: 

I lack Hughes, R e a c h  Manager, SpeeiGc Claims West, la W h  J.  Plllipaw, February 12, 1993 (ICC Docu- 
men& p. 653). 

5 Supplemmal Submission, Fishing take Band Specilic Lvld Claim: 1907 Surrender, September 29, 1994 (ICC 
Docme&, pp. @?%) 

6 Suppiemrmal Submidon, Fishing Iake Band SpeeiGc Land Claim: 1907 Surrender, September 29, 1994 (ICC 
Documents, pp. 756-57). 

7 Supplemental Submission, Fishing lake Band Specific Land C l ~ .  I907 Sunender, January 31, 1995, labled at 
ICC Fianning Conference, Februvy 2, 1995 (ICC Gle 2107-23-1). 

8 Jack Hughes, Rerevch Manager, Prbie Sped= C h r ,  lo Chiet Michel Desjarlvs and Caumei, June 14, 
1995 (ICC Me 2107-24.1) 

9 ~ lephen  M. Wpow Lo" ~&tmissianers. India Cllimr C a b s i o n ,  October 13. 1994. enclosing, infer alia. 
Fishing take Fin1 Nation. Band Councll Rewlution. September 28. 1994 (ICC 6le 2107-23-1). 
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(a) whether a claimant has a valid claim for negotiation under the Policy where that 
claim has already been rejected by the M i t e r  . . . ' O  

Pursuant to this mandate, the Commission has developed a unique inquiry 
process. In it the parties are brought together at various stages to discuss the 
claim and to clarify the issues, evidence, and respective legal positions. The 
Commission encourages a full and open discussion of issues and exchange of 
documents, and all this work is done with the assistance of representatives 
from the Commission. The parties are asked to explain their positions on the 
claim and, as much as possible, plan the inquiry on a cooperative basis. 

During the course of this particular inquiry, the First Nation had an oppor- 
tunity to submit new evidence and arguments, which ultimately caused 
Canada to reconsider the rejection of the First Nation's claim and to offer to 
accept it for negotiation - an offer the First Nation has accepted. Canada's 
willingness to revisit its past legal opinion was a response, at least in part, to 
the constructive dialogue between the parties and the flexible nature of the 
Commission inquiry process. 

We wish to emphasize that, in view of the parties' decision to enter into 
negotiations, no further steps have been taken by the Commission to inquire 
into the First Nation's claim. We make no findings of fact. This report, which 
contains a brief summary of the First Nations claim and the chronology of 
events leading up to Canada's decision, is simply meant to advise the public 
that the First Nation's claim has been accepted for negotiation under the 
Specific Claims Policy. 

lo commission issued Seplember I. 1992. pursuant to Order in Council PC 1992-1730. July 27. 1992. smend'mg 
the Commission issued to Chief Commir8ioner Hany S. Laforme on August 12, 1991. pursuant to Order in 
Council PC 1991-1329, july l i ,  1991. 
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PART I1 

HISTORY OF THE CLAIM 

The Yellow Qua Band adhered to Treaty 4 on August 24, 1876, at Fort Pelly, 
Noah-West Terri torie~.~~ Chief Yellow Quill and two headmen, Kenistin and 
Ne-Pin-awa, signed the adhesion, which, through Treaty 4, provided that 
reserves would be set aside for the Indians "of sufficient area to allow one 
square mile for each fattuly of five, or in that proportion for larger or smalier 
families . . ."12 

FISHING LAKE RESERVE SURVEYED 

In September 1881, John C. Nelson, Dominion Land Surveyor, surveyed 
reserves for the Yellow Quill Band at Fishing Lake and Nut Lake. The reserve 
at Nut Lake was made up of 10,342 acres and was described by Nelson as 
"highly suitable for the production of barley and potatoes, and the lake 
abounds with fish and foul."13 After completing the survey at Nut Lake, Nelson 
proceeded to Fishing Lake, "where some families of Yellow Quill's band had 
already settled,"14 and surveyed a reserve of 22,080 acres. The location of 
this reserve was also suitable for farming, he reported, the soil being very 
rich and there being plenty of good timber.'S The reserves at Fishing Lake 
and Nut Lake were confinned by Order in Council on May 17, 1889, and 
were withdrawn from the operation of the Dominion Lands Act on June 12, 

11 Canada. I d d n  TreafiesandSumnders (Onaw 1891: h a i m  reDr. Toronto: Coles. 19711, vol. I ,  no 135. 
320.21 (ICC Documents. p. 6). 

12 Trealj rVo 4 between Her Majesty the Queen and the Cree and Saulteaur Tnber of lnddns at QuXpplIe 
and Forl Ellice (Ouam: Queen's hinter ,  1966), Cat. No. Ci 72-0466 (ICC Documents, p. 2) 

13 John C. Nelson, Dominion Iand Surveyor, to Superintendent General of Indian Bairr, January 10, 1882. 
Canada, Parkunen~, Sessio~l Papers, 1882, No. 14, "Annual Report of the Department of Indian ARairs for the 
Year Ended Zlst December. 1881." 132 ilCC Documeols. o. 20). 

t i  John C. Nelson. Dorninio/Und ~ u i q o ; ,  to superintendent General of Indian AUairr, J a n u q  10. 1882, 
Canada, Parliament, Sessio~IPaperr, 1882, No. 14, "Annual Report of the Department of Indian mdrs for the 
Year Ended 3lrt December, 1881," 133 UCC Documens, p. 2 1 ) .  

t i  John C. Nekon. Dominion Und Sumeyor, to Superintendent Cenerd of Indian Mairs, Janumw 10, 1882, 
Canada. Farliment, SesnoMl Papers, 1882, No. 14, "Annual Report of the D e p m e n t  a( Indian ARairr for the 
Year Ended 31rt December, 1881." 133 (ICC Documents, p. 21). 



1893.16 A third reserve, containing 9638 acres, was surveyed in 1900 "in the 
locality which [the Kinistino] Indians have for sometime occupied,"17 and 
confirmed by Order in Council on October 22, 1901.18 

RESERVE LANDS OPENED FOR SMTLEMENT 

Soon after the last reserve was surveyed, the Canadian Northern Railway 
Company applied for and was granted a right of way over a poaion of the 
Fishing Lake reserve. Then in 1905 the company requested that the northern 
end of the Fishing Lake Reserve be opened for senlement.19 Frank Oliver, the 
new Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, advised his Deputy, Frank 
Pedley, of the company's request and sought information on the subject. 
James Campbell, a departmental employee, recommended a surrender of a 
portion of the reserve: "[Tlhe best policy, in the interests of all concerned, 
would apparently be to induce [the Indians] to surrender the Fishing Lake 
Reserve, and take an equivalent in land at Nut Lake or some other northern 
point. . . . Probably a surrender could be readily obtained as these Indians 
have apparently more than the usual aversion to contact with white men."'o 

Acting on Campbell's recommendation, Oliver sought the help of the Rev- 
erend Dr John McDougall of Calgary "to do special work for the Department 
in negotiating the surrender of portions or the whole of certain Indian 
reserves."" Part of this "special work  included negotkdting the surrender at 
Fishing Lake. 

Around the same time that the Reverend Dr McDougaU was hired, the 
Department of Indian Affairs had the Kinistino, Fishing Lake, and Nut Lake 
reserves taken out of the distant Touchwood Hills Agency. Kinistino reserve 
was placed under the Duck Lake Agency and the remaining two were placed 

16 Order ~n Coilocd PC 1151, May 17, 1889 (ICC Doeurnentr. pp. 30.31); Order ~n Council PC 16%. June 12, 
I893 (ICC Documents, pp. 32-34). 

11 D.C. Scott, Accounmt, to Deputy Superintendent General of Indian &us, Seplernber 19. 1906, National 
hh iws  d Canada [hereinafter NA], RC LO, vol. 6704, file 12lA-3-7. (ICC Documenls, p. 119). 

18 Order in Council PC 1898, October 22, I W I  (ICC Documents, pp. 38-39). 
19 Frank Ohver, Superintendent General of Indian Aihirs, to Frank Pedleg. DepuN Superintendent Getled of 

Indian AEzks. July 3, IWj ,  NA. RG LO, val. 4020. file 28047012 (ICC Doelunenvr, p. 64). 
?o James J. Campbell, Deparment of Lndian Ailairs, lo DepuN Mimster, Drpanment of Indian iaaus, Juiv 20. 

1905, ?4A, RG LO, vol. 4020. rk 228047012 (ICC Documen&, p. 68), 
? I  Fnnk  Ohver, Superintendent General of Indian A h i n ,  to Fnnk Pedley, Deputy Superintendent General 01 

Indian liaics, July 3, 190j. XA, RC 10. wl,  40'20. file 28M7On (ICC Docurnenvr, p. 69) 
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under the PeUy Agen~y.~' This transfer, in addition to easing travel for the 
Indian agents, had the effect of making Inspector W.C. Graham responsible 
for both Fishing Lake and Nut Lake?3 

SEPARATION OF THE BANDS AND THE SURRENDER 

Frank Pedley then instructed the Reverend Dr McDougall to seek the surren- 
der of the Fishing lake Reserve. Pedley also instructed McDougall on the 
matter of per capita cash distributions to the Band: 

Under the provisions of section 70 of the [tndianl Act, as re-enacted by section 6, 
Chap. 34, Vic. 61, you will observe that not more than 10% of the proceeds of any 
lands sunendered, as may be agreed upon at the time of surrender, can be paid to 
the members of the band, and the remainder of the proceeds ot sale shall be placed 
to the credit of the Indians, and the interest thereon paid to them from time to time.I4 

It is possible that McDougall met with the Indians at Fishing Lake as early 
as October 9, 1905; however, the only evidence on record to indicate such a 
meeting is a telegraph message from Indian Agent H.A. Carruthers dated 
October 7, stating that "Rev McDougall meets Indians here to-day I accom- 
pany him west to fishing lake reserve on ninth."25 It is clear that McDougall 
did meet with the Indians of Fishing Lake the following summer on July 16, 
1906. His report of this meeting offers no indication of the position of the 
Indians on the matter of surrender. His letter does reveal, however, the 
implementation of a proposed amendment to the Indian Act under which the 
Department could now offer 50 per cent of the anticipated proceeds of sale 
as inducement to the surrender.26 

Acting towards securing the surrender at Fishing Lake, Pedley notified 
Agent Carruthers of a second meeting between McDougaU and the Indians, 
planned for July 3 1, 1906. Pedley telegrammed Agent Carruthers to " [s] end 

2 2  J m e r J .  Campbell, Depvtmpnt of Indian Affrn, to D e p y  Superintendent General ot lndiln Ahirr, August 22. 
1905, NA, RC 10, "01. 3935, fde 118537ll (IU: Documents, p. 72). In March 1907. however, the Fishing Lake 
Reserve wls returned to the supemision of the Touchrvaod Agent: see Frank Pedley. Deputy Superintendent 
General of lndlan &rs, to Secrelq,  Depvtment o i  Indim ms, NA, RC LO, vol. 3935, file 11853711 (ICC 
Dacumena, p. 143). 

23 J.D. McLnn, Secretuy, Dtpmmenr oi lndian hitairs, to Dand Laird, Indian Commissioner, Depanment at 
lndian Affairs, August 26, 1905, NA. RG 10. vol. 3935. fde 11853711 (ICC Documens. D. 73). 

24 Frank Pedleg, ~ e i y  Superintendent Generai oi lndian Afimrs, to Reverend John Mc~ougall ,  August 29, 1905. 
NA, RG 10, vd. 4020. Gle 280470/2 (ICC Documents. p. 75). 

25  H.A. Cmuthers. lndian Agent, to DeparUnent 01 lndian hitars, October 7, 1905, UA, RG 10, rol. 4020, tile 
2W7OR (ICC nnmm~nn. n 7 7 )  ...~ . . ~  ..--v--..-..-,v . . ,  

16 Reverend John McDougd to J D .  IMeLean. Secrelary, Deparlment of lndian .A&n. J d y  17. 1906. NA, RG GO, 
vol. 6704, tile 121b3~3  (ICC Documents, pp. 104-06). 
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word at once to Indians to assemble on that date without fail. This must be 
attended to without fail."" This telegram was received on the evening of July 
28 by Indian Agent Fred Fischer, who sent a message to a local man in 
Wadena to notdy the Indians at Nut Lake and Fishing Lake of McDougall's 
impending visit.28 In advance of this meeting, Pedley had forwarded to 
McDougall the forms of surrender for a portion of the Fishing Lake Reserve, 
amounting to 14,080 acres, and a cheque for $7000.29 Reverend McDougall 
took these with him to the Fishing Lake Reserve. 

McDougall's visit to Nut Lake on July 31, 1906, met with Little success as 
"[oln their [his and the Agent's] arrival at Wadena it was found the Nut Lake 
Indians had already left their reserve. Fishing Lake Reserve was therefore 
visited on the 1st. instant, but only a few Indians were on the reserve."3O 
McDougall arranged for a meeting with the Indians at Fishing Lake on August 
2, 1906, to discuss the surrender. His proposal was rejected. The reasons 
were provided by Indian Commissioner Laird in a report to Ottawa on August 
7, 1906: 

A meeting was arranged for the [allowing day [August 2, 19061, when Dr. McDougall 
fully explained to the Indians their connection with the Nut take and Kinistino Indi- 
ans. The Indians tefused the surrender on the condition that the Nut Lake and Kinis- 
tino Bands share equally with them in the proceeds received from the sale of the 
surrendered part of their reserve. They claim that the three bands each look upon 
their own reserves as their distinct property, and besides they have nothing in com- 
mon in their intercourse with each other?' 

In his report of the meeting, McDougall recommended that "these People 
be considered as three distinct  band^."^^ This recommendation was consid- 
ered by the Department in a memoranctum dated September 19, 1906, to 
Pedley from Accountant Duncan CampbeU Scott (who later became Deputy 
Superintendent General for Indian Mairs). Scott reported that "[t] he associ- 
ation of these Bands was purely fortuitous and there is no insurmountable 

27 F m k  Pedl ley, Depuiy Superintendent General of Indian Mzh, to HA. Carruthers, lndian Agenl, July 27, 1906 
(ICC Documen4 p. 108). 

38 Fred Fisher, Acti~g Indian Agent, la Frank Pedley, Deputy Superintendenl General of lndian &rs, July 31, 
1%. NA, RRC 10, ml. 6704, file 121A-3-2 (ICC Documents, p. 111). 

29 F m k  Pedley, D e w  Superintendent General 01 Lndian &, to Rmrend John McDou@I, Julv 28, 1906, NA, 
RG 10, vol. 6704, 6le 121A-3-2 (ICC Documents, p. 109). 

30 D a d  Laird, lndian Commissioner, to Secretaq, Deparmenl of Lndian Mairs, .August 7, 1906, Nh KG 10, vol. 
6704, Me IZlA-3-2 (KC P--,.---*- - "I' 

31 David Lurd, lndiao Commf 
6704, He l2tA-3-2 (ICC Documents, p. 112). 

13 Reverend John McDougd to Frank Pe*, Deputy Superintendent General of lndian h8aLn. [August lo, 19061. 
N.4. KG 10. vol. 6704. 61e 121A-3-3 (ICC Documents. p. 116). 

'Yrul l rnu,  y .  I*,. 

rsioner, to Secretary, Dewment of lndian AEairs. A u ~ u t  7. 1936, NA, RG 10, vol. 
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obstacle to their separation if the feeling between the Indians of Nut and 
Fishing Lakes is as the Commissioner represents in his letter of the 7th 
August."33 He continued: "Without unnecessary argument, but taking a short 
cut toward a settlement, I would propose that as the Kinistino Indians have 
the just proportion to their numerical strength of the lands under Treaty, they 
be designated and considered a separate Band. . ."34 Scott recommended 
that at the upcoming annuity payments, the chief men of the three Bands 
meet together, in the presence of the Indian Commissioner or other author- 
ized official, to sign a document k ing  their reserves at their current acre- 
ages. He stated that "[tlhis will have the result of varying the Treaty and 
might be accepted by Order-in-Council in the usual way. It might be well, as 
the Kinistino Indians signed the original adhesion to Treaty at the same time 
as the other Band, to have their Chiefs also sign the Instrument."3j 

In November 1906 the Department informed the Reverend Dr McDougall 
of Scott's views and requested his opinion. In his reply, McDougall rejected 
the "proposed method of settlement" put forward by Scott. He explained: 

They [the Indians] consider themselves as three distinct Bands and from what I could 
learn on the ground strongly resent the idea of your Department that they still form 
portions of one Band. They say they never were one Band, are not now and seemingly 
never intend to be. I f .  . . these Indians are still due 6.3 square miles of land if the 
Department so thought Bt tlus area might be attached to the Nut Lake Reserve thus 
giving a more proportionate reserve to these Nut Lake Indians, but taking them as 
they now are, 1 would deal with each one of these three Bands individually without 
calling their loyalties or requiring of them any formal acceptance of such a division. 
Why seek to divide those who on their own showing were never ~ n i t e d . ? ~  

Ignoring the views expressed by Dr McDougall, the Department set out to 
finalize the land allotments provided to Nut Lake, Fishing Lake, and Kinistino 
under Treaty 4 on the understandmg that the three bands would then be 
considered separate and distinct and that each band would have exclusive 
rights to its own reserve.j7 

33 D.C. Scolt. heewnwnl, lo Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Alldarn, September 19. 1906, N q  RG 10, vol. 
6704. Me IZlA-3-2 (ICC Docmems. o: 119). . 

4 .  D C ;;IN !r<oU~.~cd $0 Irepub hupmnundent General {ell Inhal l  .&rj 9plemoer 10 1.h16, V \  RG 11. $01 
u-lh, bl t  l!l.43.1 ICC ku!aellE, op 119-20, 

.i U I: \;,I: lCcn~n!lM ' 0  D~yvn ~upmntrndenl tienerd ( 11  In .E l0  l h ~ n  kpl?moer 1.) IMO VL HI; 1.1 \ >I 

6704, file 121A-3-2 (ICC D k u i e n k ,  p. 120). 
36 Reverend John McDougd lo Dtpury Superinlendeat General of Indian &in. November L3. 1906. N.4, RG 10. 

vol. 6704 iile 12th-'-2 (ICC Docurnew? on 127-2R) 
~ ~ ~ ~, -- 

~ r r  ~- 

37 Frank Pedley. ~e~urySup;&ndeal General ol  i n d i " ~ a i c s ,  lo David Laird, Indian Commissioner, December 
11. 19g, Nh, RG 10, ml. 3561. ae 8211 (LCC Documents, pp. 129.31). 
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In March 1907, Inspector W.M. Graham was instructed to carry out the 
task of separating the Nut lake, Fishing Lake, and Kinistino Bands and was 
prodded with the "separation agreement" prepared by the DepartmentJ8 
Once the separation agreement had been signed, Graham was to arrange for 
the surrender of 13,170 acres from the Fishing Lake Reserve; the Department 
agreed to advance 10 per cent of the proceeds from the surrendered lands 
for distribution among the Indians when the surrender was signed.39 Graham 
accepted his instructions; however, rather than await the cash advance, Gra- 
ham wrote to the Secretary of the Department, J.D. McLean, asking "to have 
the sum of $10,000.00 placed to my credit as it will be necessary to make a 
cash payment at the time of taking the ~ u r r e n d e r . " ~ ~  McLean replied that the 
Department agreed to forward Graham $ 1 0 , 0 0 O ? I  

In June 1907, unsure of what Graham's instructions had been regarding 
the separation of the three bands, Assistant Indian Commissioner McKenna in 
Winnipeg asked him to advise "promptly what arrangements have been made 
as to the submitting of the proposition to the Indians. A question has arisen 
as to the rights of individual Indians in the matter upon which it may be 
necessary to further instruct you."42 The question that had arisen concerned 
the "rights of individual Indians to elect as to the reserve upon which they 
will reside and the band in which they will be paid."'3 Mr McKenna provided 
the following example: 

fo r  instance, one Kah-ka-qua-nape, who appears t o  have been living on the  Fislung 
lake Reselve, presented himself for payment at Nut Lake claiming that he always 
received his money there.  Mr. Agent MacArlhur refused to  pay him. This Indian was 
last paid in  1903, but the paylists do n o t  show at what  point he was paid. 

c 3  Fmnd I'i::ci 1 4 p . ~  ii.pmntcndrc i Grncrrl .i In irm \Ifi~r,, lo U I On. Llnds i T ntoer Uranrh \I~r;n I i 
Iw' \.< RG 19 w c  1%-h llle 1?1.\-3-2 LC< bocallenr?, p lr! . md F m k  Prdlcr Deprn i.!rr.ncnluel.l 
Crwr~I  , f I t  J.AO ! t h r ,  t .4  u M G d u n  lt~*m<tor .!ce~~c~es, Dcuamttcrtc ~i I: d . ~ , .  % ~ b ~ r , .  M.rc5 !u 
1937, Nh. RC 10. wt 6704, file IZ IA-~-Z  ( I ~ C  ~ ~ c u m e n l s ,  p. 146). 

' 

. .  . 
4 1  J.D. McLean, ~ekeiary, Depanment df indian&rs, to W.M. ~ n h a & .   specto tor, lndim'&encies, Department 

at Lndm hitcs. May 11, 1907. NA, RC 10. vol. 6704, file 121A-3-2 (ICC Documents, p, 150). 
il J.A.J. McKenna. &islsa lndian Commissioner, Department of Indian &rr, la W.M. Graham, tospector. 

1ndi.m Agencies. Department of lndian hitairs. June 15, 1907, NA, RG 10, vol 3561, Me 8UI (ICC Documenls, 
p I j i )  

i 3  J.A.J. McKenna, ,bsistant lndian Commirrianer, Department of lndian Mairs, to J.D. Mclean, Secrel;w. Depart- 
rnent of Indinti .&m, June 17, 1907, XA, RC 10, val. 6704, fde 121A-3-2 (ICC Documenls, p. 156) 

44 JA J MeKenna. Assistant lndian Commissioner, Department of lndian AEurr, la J D. Mclean, Secrelq,  Depart- 
men1 of Indian &ri, June 17, 1907, NA, RG 10, vol. 6704, fde l2IA-3-2 (ICC Dacumenls. p. 156). 
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In his response to the Indian Commissioner, Graham reiterated his 
instructions first to "effect a separation of the Indians on these three 
Reserves," after which he was to take a surrender at Fishing Lake.'5 A few 
weeks later he wrote to Mcbean expressing some concern over Assistant 
Commissioner McKema's intervention in the matter: "I thought my instruc- 
tions regarding these land surrenders were to come from the Department 
and not from two sources, to make conf~sion."~~ He explained his view of his 
instructions: 

I am Grst to get a separation of the Kinistino, Nut Lake and Fishing lake Bands, 
allowing each to hold the reserves they are now residing upon. Then I return to 
Fishing llke and ask them for a surrender of part of their reserve and if they agree to 
surrender I take it, and pay the Indians of Fishing lake only."' 

In an effort to clarify matters after receiving Graham's letter, Secretary 
McLean wrote Assistant Commissioner McKema: "If the question that has 
arisen is the one referred to in your letter of the 17th June last . . . addressed 
to the Department it does not affect the surrender or separation of these 
Bands in any way as it is a question of the payment of annuity money, which 
is governed by the rules pertaining to such, - i.e. - that where the annuitant 
resides there shall he be paid."48 

In reply, McKenna explained that Indian Agents MacActhur and Murison 
had encountered some ditEculties in making payment to Kahkaquanape. At 
the annuity payment, Kahkaquanape claimed to belong to the Nut Lake 
Reserve and presented himself for payment there. The Indians of Nut Lake 
refused to recognize him as "belonging" to their reserve. Agent Murison then 
raised the point that, "as the three reserves were held in common, the Indi- 
ans Living upon the Nut Lake Reserve had no right to refuse admittance 
thereto to Kahkaquanape. [Agent Murison] stated that his information was 
that some of the Indians did not live continuously on one reserve and were 

45 WM. Graham. hrpectw, hdian Agenner, Depanment of Indun h s ,  to David bird,  lndian Commissioner. 
June 19. 1907, NA, RC 10, vol. 3561, me 8211 (ICC Documents, p. 157). 

46 W M  Graham, Inspector, lndian Agenaes, D e p m e n t  of Indian hitairs, to Secretary. Depanmenl of lndian 
AUairs. July 4, 1907 (ICC Documents, p. 160). 

i: W.M. Graham, Inspeaw, lndian Agencies, Departnee of lndian Affairs, to Secrerary, Department of lndian 
.&?airs, July 4. 1907 (ICC Documents. p. 160). 

18 J D  McLean, Secretaq, Deplrlmenl of Indian MUn, la J.A.J. McXenna. .A%sIant Indian Cummissloner, Depart. 
men! of lnd~an AJfairs, July 10, 1907, XA, RG 10, vol. 3561, fde 8211 (ICC Docmen&, p. 162). 
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paid some years at one point and some years at another."*9 Assistant Com- 
missioner McKenna went on to state: 

I wrote Mr. Inspector Graham for the simple purpose of ascertaining whether he was 
so inst~ucted as to admit of his dealing with such a question, and as to whether on the 
breaking up of this band into three parts the members would have any right of elec- 
tion as to where they would reside. . . . I feared that the question raised by Mr. Agent 
Murison might occasion dificulty in the negotiations which Mr. Graham is to carry 
ot~t, and it his instructions do not cover the point, that it would be weU to have him 
insllucled as to the Department's position upon the question.j0 

There is no evidence in the historical record for this inquiry to suggest that 
the issue raised in this passage was ever considered again by the Department. 
In fact, the "Principal men" of Nut Lake &ed their marks to an agreement 
recognizing them as a separate band on July 27, 1907, followed by the "Prin- 
cipal men" of Kinistino on July 31. One week later, on August 7, the "Princi- 
pal men" of Fishing Lake affixed their marks to this agreement." 

Two days later, on August 9, 1907, Inspector Graham secured the surren- 
der of 13,170 acres from the Fishing Lake Band.jz Upon surrender, Graham 
paid each Indian at Fishing Lake $100.j3 Nine members of the Fishing Lake 
Band &xed  their marks to the surrender document." In Graham's report to 
Secretary McLean on August 21, 1907, he explained that the Indians at Fish- 
ing Lake were "not at all anxious to sell": 

I kft the Agency on July 20th. . . On the way up I stayed two days at Fishing Lake 
while the Treaty payments were being made, but 1 did not say anydung to the Indians 
about surrendering their reserve, until I had dealt with the Indians of Nut Lake and 
Kinistino. . . . 

Graham then explained that he obtained the agreement to separate from the 
Indians at Nut Lake and Kinistino before going on to Fishing Lake. He arrived 
at Fishing Lake on August 6, 1907. 

I9 Jh. McKenna, Assisant Indian Commissioner, Deparunellt of Indian Mairs, to Secrew, Depanment of Indian 
hairs, July 15, 1907. NA, Rti LO, vol. 6704, file IZIA-3-2 (ICC Documents, D. 163). 

50 J.A.J. McKenna, Assismt Indian Commissioner, Depmment of Indian &n, toSecretary, Depanmea ol Indim 
&rs, July 15, 1107, M, RG LO, vol. 6704, file 121A-3~2 (ICC Documents, p. 164). 

j l  Separaaan Agreement executed bewen the Fishing Lake, Nut Lake, and Kinistino Band, August 7, 1907, NA. RG 
10, "01. 6704, file IZIA.3-2 (ICC Documens. DD. 167-69). 

i 2  Surrender mstrument and related documents; &us1 9. 1907 (ICC Documents. pp. 170-72). 
i 3  Surrender instrument and related documents. August 9, 1907 (ICC Documents, pp. 170-72); Record of pay- 

ments made bv W.M. tinham, Inspector. Indm Agencies, Department of Lnd$n A h i ~ r ,  August 12, 1901, Nh. 
KC 10, vol. 6704. Gie 121A-3-2 (ICC Documents, pp. 176.85). 

ii Surrender instrument and related documents, August 9, 1907 (ICC Documens, pp. 170-72). 
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The following day [August 7, 19071 I called the Indians together and explained to 
them that the Nut Lake and Kinistino Indians had relinquished all claim to the Fishing 
lake Reserve, which was not theirs, and aiked them if they were willing to relinquish 
their claims to Nut Lake and Kinistino reselves, which they agreed to do. I then asked 
them to surrender a portion of the Fishing Lake reserve, which was now theirs. 1 was 
surprised to h d  hat they were not at all anxious to sell and it was hvo days before 
they agreed to seU. In fact, I had given up hope of getting the surrender, till just 
before starting for home a number of the Band came over and said they were willing 
to sign the surrender. A meeting was called and the whole Band voted for the 
surrender." 

On August 3 0 ,  1907, Frank OLiver submitted the surrender to the Gover- 
nor in Council for approval, recommending that authority be given for the 
disposition of the land according to the terms of the surrender.56 The Gover- 
nor in Council approved the surrender and sanctioned the proposed sale of 
the land by Order in Council dated September 7 ,  1907.57 Most of the land 
was sold at three public auctions in 1909 and 1 9 1 0 .  

i j  W.M. Graham. Inspector. Indian Agencies, D e p a m e a  of Indian H a i n ,  lo Secrelq, Depamenl of lndlan 
a z i n ,  hugus1 21, 1907. N& RG LO. rol. 6704, fde I!IA-3-2 (ICC Documends, pp. 186-89). 

56 Submission lo the Governor in Council, Augusl 30. 1907, N& RC 10, val. 6704, file 12Lh-3-2 (ICC Documents, 
n lOli r .  -,-,. 

57 Order in Council. September 7, 1907, Nh. RG 10, "01. 6704, lde 121.4-3-2 (ICC Documents, p. 192) 
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PART I11 

ISSUES 

The issues for this inquiry were framed as follows: 

I Was there a valid surrender on August 9, 1907, of some 13,170 acres of the 
Fishing Lake Reserve No. 89? 

1) Did the Crown obtain the surrender: 
a) as a result of duress; 
b) as a result of undue intluence; 
C) as a result of unconscionable agreement; or 
d) as a result of negligent misrepresentation. 

2 )  Did the Crown when obtaining the surrender comply with the surrender pro- 
cedures required by the indian Act? 

3) Did the Crown have any trust or fiduciary obligations in relation to the sur- 
render of 1W5 from the First Nation, and if so: did the CrownfdJti those 
trust or fiducia~y obligations when it obtained the surrender? 

4) Did the provisions of Treaty 4 require the Crown to obtain the consent of the 
Indians entitled to the Fishing Iake Reserve, prior to disposing of some 
13,170 acres of the reserve, and if so was that consent obtained? 

I1 if the evidence is inconclusive by any of the previous issues, which party has the 
onus of proot?'" 

58 C m t  Chrlslot Associate Legd Counsel, lndim Cimr Commirr~on, to Siephen Fillipow and Kim K o b a p L ,  
June 16, 1991, (ICC file 2107~25-I) 
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PART IV 

THE INQUIRY 

A planning conference was held on February 2, 1995, in Saskatoon, Sas- 
katchewan, with representatives of the Fishing Lake First Nation, Canada, and 
the Commission in attendance. The planning conference is an informal meet- 
ing convened by Commission staff shortly after the inquiry begins. It was 
devised by the Commission to involve the parties to a claim where practicable 
in planning the inquiry, and also as a means of settling claims whenever 
possible without the need for a full inquiry. In this inquiry, representatives of 
the parties, with their legal counsel, met with the Legal and Mediation Advisor 
for the Commission to review and discuss the claim, identify the issues raised 
by the claim, and plan the inquiry on a cooperative basis. 

Following this first meeting, Commission staff visited the Fishing Lake First 
Nation on April 10, 1995, to prepare for the more formal commuluty session, 
which was held on July 27, 1995. During the community session, elders and 
other members of the First Nation have an opportunity to present historical 
evidence from their oral tradition, including evidence that may not be admis- 
sible in a court of law, directly to the Commission panel conducting the 
inquiry. The session is generally held in the First Nation community, if facili- 
ties are available, and is attended by representatives of Canada, the First 
Nation, and the Commission. Out of respect for the elders, and in recognition 
of the cultural values of First Nations, elders and community members who 
address the Commissioners are not required to testify under oath, nor is 
cross-examination permitted. 

After hearing the information provided at the community session on July 
27, 1995, oral submissions were scheduled for January 31, 1996. Oral sub- 
missions are one of the last stages in the commission inquiry process. It is at 
this point that lawyers for the First Nation and Canada present written and 
oral arguments on the facts and the law. The Commissioners then prepare a 
formal report outlining their findings and recommendations. In this case, 
however, approximately six weeks before the date set for the oral submis- 



sions, legal counsel for the First Nation notified Canada and the Commission 
that it had recently come to his attention that at least one (and possibly 
three) of the individuals who signed the surrender document in 1907 was 
not 21 years of age.59 This was a potentially important point because, under 
the Indirm Act in force at the time, the surrender had to be "assented to by a 
majority of the male members of the band of the full age of twenty-one 
years."@ 

A conference call involving representatives of Canada, the First Nation, and 
the Commission was convened on January 9, 1996, to discuss this new infor- 
mation. It was agreed during the conference call that counsel for the First 
Nation would provide Canada with a review of the information by January 16, 
1996, and that Canada would then be given an opportunity to conduct its 
own confirming research. As a result, it was agreed that the oral submissions 
would be postponed.61 They were subsequently rescheduled for March 26, 
1996.62 

Another conference call was convened on March 12, 1996, following the 
completion of Canada's research. Canada maintained its position that it was 
prepared to proceed to the oral submissions stage of the inquiry process. 
Counsel for the First Nation advised that he intended to rely on The Judica- 
ture Ordinance in force in 1907 to argue that the affidavit certifying the 
surrender was not properly sworn according to the statutory standards in 
place at the time.63 A week later, during a conference call on March 19, 
1996, the parties agreed to adjourn the oral submissions again so that 
Canada could reconsider its legal opinion. 

On May 7, 1996, Jack Hughes, Research Manager for DIAND, advised the 
Chief and Council of the First Nation that, "[als a result of a further and 
extensive review of the additional evidence and submissions provided in sup- 
port of the Fishing Lake First Nation's 1907 surrender claim," the Depart- 
ment was prepared to recommend that the claim be accepted for negotiation 
under the Specific Claims Policy. He continued: 

This recommendat ion i s  basedupon the First Nation's submission that an outstanding 
lawful ob4igatioe on the part of the federal government ("Canada") erists within t h e  

59 Stephen Pillipov to Urn Kabayashi, Department ofJustice. December 21. 1995 (LCC file 2107-23-I), 
60 See lndkza Act, RSC 1886, c. 43, i. 39(a); Indian Acl, RSC 1906, c. 81. s. 49(1). 
61 Kathleen N. tiekerr. kssaciale Legal Counsel. Indian Claims Comm~rion. to Stephen Rllipaw. Kim KohayuM, 

and Bruce Becker, J a n u q  9, 1996 (ICC Gle 2107-23-1) 
62 Kathleen N. tickers. Associate Legal Counsel, Indian Cl&s Commission. to Stephen Plllipaw, Kim Kobayashi, 

and Bruce Beeker. Febualv i 1% (ICC file 2107-23-1) ~~ -~~~ ~, ., -, , ~ ,~.. .... ... . -. 
63 Stephen Fillipow 16 Kim Kobapshi, Depanment of Just 

. .,. 
ice, March 12. 1996 (ICC Gle 2107-23-1) 
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meaning of the Specific Claims Policy with respect to the 1907 surrender of a portion 
of the Fishing Lake Reserve No. 89 (the "Resene Lands"). In particular, this recom- 
mendation is made on the basis of the First Nation's allegation that the Reserve Lands 
were not surrendered in accordance with the requirements of the Indian Act.& 

On June 17, 1996, counsel for the First Nation informed the Commission 
that the First Nation had provided a Band Council Resolution to Mr Hughes, 
"indicating that the First Nation [was] prepared to proceed with the negotia- 
tions of a settlement of the Claim and directing Specific Claims to immediately 
proceed with the recommendation to the Minister that the First Nation's 
Claim be accepted for neg~tiation."~' The claim was formally accepted for 
negotiation on August 27, 1996.6~ 

The Commission's role in the process normally would have ended as soon 
as the First Nation's claim was accepted for negotiation. However, on Septem- 
ber 30, 1996, counsel for the First Nation wrote to the Commission and 
asked if it would consider acting as a facilitator for the  negotiation^.^' The 
Commission responded that it "would be pleased to provide a facilitator for 
these negotiations if Canada [was] also in agreement that the Commission's 
involvement would be of assistance in these  negotiation^."^^ Canada subse- 
quently agreed to have the Commission facilitate the negotiations. Facilitation 
focuses almost entirely on matters relating to process. As "keeper of the pro- 
cess," the Commission is expected to chair the negotiation meetings and 
assist by producing an accurate record of the negotiations, following up on 
undertakings, and consulting with the parties to establish agreed upon agen- 
das, venues, and times for meetings. 

In the negotiation of this claim, the Commission has been asked to assist 
the parties as a neutral chair. Although the Commission is not at liberty to 
discuss the nature of the negotiation, we can say that the parties, as repre- 
sented by the Fishing Lake First Nation and the Department of Indian Affairs, 
respectively, have worked cooperatively to establish a protocol for the ensu- 

61 Jack Hughes, Research Mvlager - Pmirie Provincer, la Chief Michael Desjulzir and Council. May 7, 1996, 
included in Kim Kabayashi. Counrel, to kthleen tickers, &sedate Counsel, Indim Clms Commission. Mag 28. 
1936 (ICC file 2107-23-1). and included at hppendi~ 8. 

65 Stephen M. PiUlpow la Kathleen N. lickers, Lndian Claims Commission, June 17, 1996 (ICC file 2107-23-1). 
66 ~ o h n  Sinclan. &ism[ DepuN Misister. Cl=imr and Indim ~owrnmeot; Depanment of lndian and Northern 

~AEdrr Canada, to Chief Michael Derjariais. hugus[ 17, 1996, included in Stephen M. Pibpow lo Kathleen N. 
Lkkerr. Indim Clamr Commission S~member 10. 1496 (ICC Rle 2107-2'4-11. and included at Aonendx C ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~, ~~r ~ ~~, ~ , , ~  , ~ ~ -  -~ - ~ .  ,, ~~- -~ ~~ 

67 stephe" k Pillpow lo Ran &hunce. Indian Clams Commission. ~eotembir 30, 1996 (ICC file 2i67.2311). 
68 R O ~  S. ~aunce,'~ommission counsel; Indian Cl-s ~ommirsion,io Siephen M. Plllipow, bciober 4, 1996 (ICC 

ale 2107.23-1). 
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ing negotiations and we are confident that this Accord will assist the parties 
to arrive at a mutually acceptable resolution to the claim. 

FOR THE INDIAN CLAIMS COMMISSION 

P.E. James Prentice, QC Roger J. Augustine 
Commission Co-Chair Commissioner 

Dated this 27th day of March 1997 
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APPENDIX A 

FISHING LAKE FIRST NATION 1907 SURRENDER CLALM INQUIRY 

1 Decision to conduct inquiry March 2, 1995 

2 Notice sent to parties March 2, 1995 

3 Planning conference February 2, 1995 

4 Community and expert session July 27, 1995 

The Commission heard from the following witnesses: Chief Michael 
Desjarlais, Stella Nanequewetung, Eva Desjarlais, Helen Paquachan, Nora 
Kayseas, Grace Wahweaye, Andrew Slippery, Lawrence Desjarlais, Phillip 
Slippery, Ned Smoke, Wilson Desjarlais, Lawrence Wahpepiness. Expert 
evidence was heard from Larry Krakalovich. 

5 Canada's offer to negotiate August 27, 1996 

6 Content of formal record 

The formal record for the Fishing Lake First Nation 1907 Surrender 
Claim Inquiry consists of the following materials: 

documentary record (4 volumes of documents and annotated index) 

43 exhibits 

transcripts (1 volume) 

correspondence among the parties and the Commission 

The report of the Commission and letter of transmittal to the parties will 
complete the record for this inquiry. 
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APPENDIX B 

Re rl$l>in~ l,al<e VlIw Xuloaa - I907 Suo~ewl+r Claim 

Ai a rciilh of a funher mJrxlcn>ire ic \ i ru  ofihe rd9t ierwts\ idmre v l~d  cuhm,<iunr provided 
ii, suppurl uftbe Flshinp Ltka F ~ r i t 3 m l u n ' s  1W72urrmdcrclaim. r v e m  pl,lwreci loac!virc :ou 
~ h n i  rrr in:< prrpa:ed 10 n~ummc:nd ro our hlinl,ler the ~ccrplnlce o l i l " i  clGm ib: i~cgoi~n~icril 
uiidsr lllc Slrecific C!ainls Policy &r scr out m lilir lcucr. 

lh i r  recoill$i?rndatiun i brred upon the F i a t  Nnriun: submismon that an outsimding lawsul 
oi.lqalion un the pan of  the Eerlaral povlinnlenr ('Canada") curls i\ltbin the meaning of 1bc 
Spee~iic ClnimsPol~c~ uilh respect lo Lhe 1907 runender ufa portion ofthc Fishing Lske 
Kescne N o  89 (thc "Rerewe Landr"). Ln p l i t i c l l i a r  this iccol>,mmndintion is nirdc on the basts u f  
11)u rirrt Kii;ltion', dlcyaliun tbai thc Rsscnc 1.mdlg u e c  no1 iorranlmd i~ amidnnre  l i l l l l  ille 
rrqaiie:ro,rr oit:>e Iniiru>, Act 

rile crncris go\crn~ng !hi: riawniiiaiion of conrpcnrauon cmdor llrc SpeciGc Cinims Policy arc 
nu~ l~nc i i  on Sehe~lula ' 'A' &tmchcd ro dltr la:% Forthe PU~POIEI  dlllk cialnl. c m p m m b n  will 
gmernlQ be stbided by cuntpcniationc~iteris 1, 3, 8.9 and 10 

On rhc baris orconrpcnralian cntcrrP 3 and 8, compen3aion ailllike!? congirt o f  a cash paymcnl 
ro cucnymarc rlsc hand for ,r.r brr of rk Rewrsc Land.% Whue r can he etnblishcd, 
~ompm~atioo m y  dw Lwilc!udc a o  amount based upon d ~ c  ,net lo ir  ofu$c: In t l u ~  regard. Crnada 
t i  !not illcparcd to accept L c  taken a ~ ~ d l h e  ronslusiunr reached in ihc rejwn hy Dr. 
ScI:oney, ' A n  rarnom;c Arsc)wt!cnc or thc1 .o~  ofFislling l.ake Surrendered Lands'' ac a barii 
Lsr dr t rmin i rg  ncr !or< uft,re 

Colnpenlarioir cni,e~lon 9 provldcr dm any comp>rauon paid $ M I  I~ke  into nccount amounts 
nircndy paid wit11 rcrpw: to the d i m  Thcrcfoie. nllloutni w d  eanjderatiun rnehed ar a rnulr 
uf the icicrnnicr of die Reraw Lad$ &ill he r&uc in," account in delwmming canlprnrrtion. 

Cuslpcsiai~~m witu~un 10 rwngni,er :hat ~ h o  coapfnatiun sriraria arc @nerd iil lnaturc and tkat 
"rlx actual amo(,nt ~ C c i i t l r  clslslant i$ "Rtrcd rill dcpend on the cxlcnt lu which the daimanr 
hui e;zsl;l~s!~r.j a iaijd c l s h  ihc lmdcn niabicii rcrr< wi!lr the Cninmnl' 111 uur view, n 
toi,s~deshi.: d c q c c  nrdolrbt cxistr uiill lecjn-r to ihc <lrci\plh US J c  clam in lighr ni'lls ilciual 
rildrl;:e uiailable to .nll(ioir the c ! ~ ~ ~ ~  In d ~ t e n l l t l l i i ~ ~  the allaunl o!'coinpcni:!t~un otfercd. 

.-,,..,-,. ~..".., (.. ., 
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sonpcr~sa~ion csitcrlotl 10 u411 Iw applied to the extcot or as  much arSO% to rcflecr this dcgrcc of 
iluuh. 

Furzlly, in r k  event that a final satlment is reached: Canada wiU require a formal surrender OF 
thc Rmerac I.ands plrwanl  to the i,nilunAe and n releasr and indemnity from the Band with 
;cspcct to t h e n  .m 6 -  5 ctaim 

T l u  tccoct~tl~cndalion that (his claim bc a c q l c d  for ncgotiationn not to be interpreted as an 
.~dmission of liabilih on the nart of Canada in tln event that a selllment IS not rewhecl and . 
titigation cnrucr. Canada rcsmffs the right to plead all defences available l o  i t  including but no1 
l i~ r i tcd  lo l i~i i i t i l t io~l perlodr, lachcr. and la& of admissible evidence. 

I T t k  Rand decides that it wishes to proceed n,ith negolintions, we will then take steps to obtain a 
formal ucctptancc oftkir claim for negotiations undcr thc Specit U r n s  Policy Born our 
hlinirter L f y w  wish to d'ijcussCmada's positionin more detail before a find nxommcn~lation 
ib marl. to the M i l l i s l a ,  or to discuss t k  Ilea steps in thc process, please la us know. T can be 
reached at (604) 666-8733 

cc. Stephen Pillipow - Via fax (306)665-1411 
Kim Kobayaslri. Depsnmcm afJwicc  



'?he fullowing critcroa sttall govern the dererminntion o f  spec~fic ciainls cornjmsation: 

I.] As a general rule. 1 dairnani band shall bc compensated for the l o n i t  har incurred and the 
da~nages it has suffered au a Cor13MltrUlU2 orthe blrach hy the federal gavernn,eilt ofits 
iau,tirl ohligations 'fir cumpensalion rill bc bared on legal principles 

2) Where a claimant band can esnblirh tlml certain af  irs raw-ve kmds were taken vr 
damgod undelder tcgd authority hut lhal no compensation was ever paid, 11% hands. lia\l be 
comp&satcd by the payment uf the valua orthcsc lands at the limeof the taking a thc 
amount of the damage done, whichcvcr i s  thc case 

) (i) Whcrc a claimant band can establish that ccnain of its rcservc lands wcrc acvcr 
lawiully sunendand. or oihcnvisc taken under legal authority, the band shall be 
co~noensatcd either bv the return ofihese lands oibv oavment ofrhe cumen!. 

(ii) Compenratio~~ may include an mount  bawd on the loss of use af tlie lands in 
question, where it can bc cstablistied that the daiiimnts did in fact rrrffer such a 
loss In cvuycace the loss shall b i the  net loss. 

4)  Compensation shall not include any additional amount based on !special value Lo owner", 
unlcrr it a n  be ertahlirhed that the land in oumlion had a %wcid economic valuc ro the 
clairnmt band, over and above iu lnnrker value 

3) Compensation shall not include any additional amount for the forcible taking of lvnd. 

6) Whcrc eompc!lsation rceeived is to heused f i r  the purchase of other lands. such 
con~pcnsatio~t niay include reasonable acquisition costs, but these must not wcccd 10% of 
the appraired value o f  the land3 to he acquired 

7) Where ir can he justified, a reawmble ponion of the cosrs ofncgotiation may bc addod to 
the compensation paid Legal fees included in those costs will be pubject l o  ihc approval 
ofthe Department o f  luslice. 

S) In any senlcnlcnt ofspecific notivc claims the government \-ill tnk4 third parry interests 
irtto accoilnt. As u general mlc. rhc $o\,ernmcnl will not accept any settlent~ml which swll 
lead to third pnnles bcing dlsposrersed. 
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SCHEDULE A (cnnt'd) 

9)  !\ny compnl;ltion paid in respecr to aclt\~m shnll stke into account any pl-euinus. 
cxpcr~dilurcalr~ndy pard tu the clainmltt in respect to the samo claim 

10) Thc criler*? set aul above are genera! in naturc and rlreoctasl amount which the claimant 
IS uIlersd will dcpend on the exccnl to which li~c claimant hnr ertablisl>ed a valid claim, the 
burdcn ofvtlich rests uith the clviznarit. As an cxamplo, ahere there ir doubt that rhc 
lands i t )  qucsrion were ever reserve land, thedegee of doubt will be rcflacral in the 
compensation oifcrad. 

) W & r i  a c l am jr h w d  ou r l r  failure af 1::c Gu\r.lno: lo C;-rcl ro npur;..c a r .ctldr.r cr 
1l.c iak:n: ~ > f  In-" iln.lei the & i 3 b ,  c.lmlcnsari?n jhal: not be based 2n rl,e ;;rrcnr. 
eni.mr>\tJ Ialue of:hc ' a d .  b,t on a:y :smanrs cll i~llrnl it.tght l laic s~.lT:r:d 
I l e ~ . ~ e e n  the 3criod t.iC:e raid .urrc?dcr or Rricthl; l d i  n~ wJ ihc npp<..r~: ~ i l l t e  
Governor h Council and by rerwn of such delay 



I N D I A N  C L A I M S  C O M M I S S I O N  P R O C E E D I N G S  

APPENDIX C 

Chief Michrl  Lbshdb 
Fishing L a b  Pint Nuion 
P.O. Box XtB 
\VAFt?NA SK S O A m  

Dmr Cnid Dujuiair: 

F i s ~ . L a k r ~ . ~ & n . ~ i f ~ . ~ ~  19QZSumndv 

01, behdf of the Gousmmcnl MCa& and in a a o r d M s  with ihe Spslfc Clxim* 
Policy. I am pi& to vscpt far irgotlrion ihe Fi$hi- Lake Firn Narion.3 
weific claim mrreraina tnc 1907 surrender of a pmian of he Fi ig  Laka 
Indim Reme No. 89.. 

For the p- of nogotiarionr. Camda accsgtr hat  the Fishing lake Firv Nation 
has s~tcknt fy  d i r h s d  tbrt Cam& h u  a iauful obligation vlrhtn the mraning 
of he Specifk tcim W i .  in reqnct to thc flrrt Nawn's a(bgYlon the 
ruervc lands wcre no( wrrmdvcrf in roodam wiih h rqrequirnnrnr or the 
Idtan Aa. 

l% ~ I w h  he deennMlon d cmpelurtwn ~e sa au m Spcifie 
C l u m  Polry W l p .  'Omroadtn~ Bdnnar'. For the purpcrJ oflhts clum. 
m m p m m n  rnll p~c,enJly brgrtded by cowcnwoncr w(a I. I. 8. 9 a!ld 10 

Whilc K is recamid chrl he Fshin. laire Vim Nuim dianrva with the ~ ~ ~ -. ~~ -. .-. . .- . . - 
W l l u u o o  of compnrvlon c.+jsr~on 10. Cuuda :I prrpa~d co rocpt b clam for 
necaiaimn on (hc &rmndiog that c o m p n u u i a ~ a i ~ o n  LO will bs appied in 
Wnn!4nl any ;aapemta o f f c d .  Our nepotluorwlll be inuated to comder 
a11 r c l m r  k m r s  rnlvd by ths Firdl Nu~w Y h e  spolul iw mbtc 1" dwnntnmg 
lk crrcm lo whlsb cnonm 10 vb.1 be rpplvd 11 my o k r  of mmpmtrul. 



FISHING L . A K E  FIRST N A T I O N  INQUIRY REPORT 

Phe acp i;i;he clatrnr prosrnr which w.:l oe fo'lo~,& hercafwr i~noludc: concluiron 
af 9 nspoliatmt pmuro! =cord: ncgollattons :ward  1 mllsmel!l aprcemcm: 

Throughout the ~ w c r s ,  Canada's fiies, includine dl dmumenu ~ubrnitted lo 
Cvlsda concmin~ the claim. u c  subjrct m t l ~  c c e s s  ro Infurmation and Privacy 
lcgioiarioil in fa. 

AII ~goriations am cot~dmtcd on a 'n,ithout prcjudbe" basis. Canada and thc rribe 
acklmwledge tiiiat all oommur.icaiin, od. written, formal or informal, m m x i t  
wirh h in?ention of c~.munging senlem~a if tke d i s p i ; ~  bemeen the pmlcr niiiy. 
and ar. not inrcnkl to mn9rlrurs admissians by any party. 

The axqwce  of ihe daim ior negotiation is  no! to 52 interpreted as an admissinn 
of lixbitiry or fr* by CnnaJn. In the even: that no serilement. is r k h e d  ad 
Iiiigatim m u m ,  Canada rcerver the right to plead all deienses available to il. 
;ncluding li~nilarion periods. laches and lack of admissible evidence. 

In rhc evsn? [hat a final pttlernenr is reached, the settlerno( aqeencnt must contan 
a rc!o;tse from the Fishing Lake Firjr Xstion anruriny that this claim canno1 be 
re&. As part of  the scnien~ent. Cnnrda * i i l  also requiro an indemnity from the 
Fir* Nation. 

A mguciat~r from dw Specific Claims 8:ax.h will be desianated to work wilh you 
in m8oking this clsim. i send my krl wishes and I am optimistic that a fair 
anlemcnt an be reached. 

Ywn siosrsly, 




